LAW AND SOCIETY: A Selected Bibliography

Compiled and Edited by JOEL B. GROSSMAN, JACK LADINSKY, and HERBERT JACOB*

The University of Wisconsin

CONTENTS

I. ARTICLES

- 1. Response to Judicial Decisions
- 2. Judicial Administration, Selection and Education
- 3. Judicial Process and Behavior
- 4. Computers, Math Models and the Law
- 5. Lawyers, Legal Education, Legal Profession
- 6. Penology and Crime Prevention
- 7. Police Administration and Criminal Justice
- 8. Legal Services for Disadvantaged Clients
- 9. Inveniles and the Law
- 10. Law and the Medical Sciences
- 11. Civil Liberties, Civil Rights, Race Relations
- 12. Social Welfare and Related Problems
- 13. Social Conflict and Social Control
- 14. Jurisprudence, Legal Process, Sociological Theory, International Law
- 15. Primitive and Folk Law
- 16. Law and Economic Regulation
- 17. Miscellaneous

II. Books

III. JOURNALS SEARCHED

^{*} The Compiling Editors wish to express their gratitude to Mary H. Grossman for aid in compiling this bibliography.

I. ARTICLES

- (1) RESPONSE TO JUDICIAL DECISIONS
- (2) JUDICIAL ADMINISTRATION, SELECTION
 AND EDUCATION
 - (3) JUDICIAL PROCESS AND BEHAVIOR

Fuller, Lon L. "An Afterword: Science and the Judicial Process," Har L R, Vol. 79, No. 8 (June, 1966).

Raises some important questions about the use of quantitative methods to study judicial decision-making. Argues that too much emphasis has been put on *prediction* and not enough on *understanding*.

HOWARD, J. WOODFORD, JR. "On the Fluidity of Judicial Choice," Amer Pol Sci R, Vol. 62, No. 1 (March, 1968).

Reporting on a study of the private papers of the late Justice Murphy, the author suggests that the range and fluidity of choices open to each Justice is considerably greater than the results of sociopsychological measurements would suggest.

Howard, Woodford, and Bushoven, Cornelius. "The Screws Case Revisited," J of Pol, Vol. 29, No. 3 (1967).

An inside view of this famous case and of the bargaining among the Justices. Based on the private papers of the late Justice Frank Murphy.

James, Dorothy. "Role Theory and the Supreme Court," *J of Pol*, Vol. 30, No. 1 (February, 1968).

Uses a Lintonian definition of role to analyze the role perceptions and behavior of two Supreme Court Justices: Douglas and Jackson. Relies on off-the-bench speeches and written opinions to categorize the role attributes of each man.

JAROS, DEAN, and MENDELSOHN, ROBERT I. Mdwst J of Pol Sci, Vol. 11, No. 4 (November, 1967).

Data gathered from Detroit Traffic Court indicate (1) that judges are bound by the role expectation that they will sentence in accordance with legally relevant criteria; (2) that they do not appear to indulge personal biases; and (3) that they sentence more harshly defendants who do not recognize the rights of the judicial role; *i.e.*, respect and deference due the court.

Peck, S. R. "The Supreme Court of Canada, 1958-1966: A Search for Policy Through Scalogram Analysis," Can Bar R, Vol. 45, No. 4 (December, 1967).

Investigates work of Supreme Court of Canada in three areas—taxation, negligence, criminal law through use of scalogram analysis.

RICHARDSON, RICHARD J., and VINES, KENNETH N. "Review, Dissent, and the Appellate Process: A Political Interpretation," *J of Pol*, Vol. 29, No. 3 (1967).

A systematic study of interaction between the federal district and appellate courts, with emphasis on the flow of business and the processes of appeal.

Schubert, Glendon. "The Rhetoric of Constitutional Change," J of Pub L, Vol. 16, No. 1 (1967).

Attempts to understand the mechanisms of constitutional change through the development of three models: Mechanical, Biological, and Cultural.

(4) COMPUTERS, MATH MODELS AND THE LAW

(5) LAWYERS, LEGAL EDUCATION, LEGAL PROFESSION

FRIEDMAN, LAWRENCE M., and MACAULAY, STEWART. "Contract Law and Contract Teaching: Past, Present, and Future," Wis L R, No. 4 (Fall, 1967).

Describe some dominant approaches to contract teaching and research; explain and evaluate them and suggest some general proposals.

RIESMAN, DAVID. "Some Observations on Legal Education," Wis L R, No. 1 (1968).

Describes legal education in the United States and suggests some law schools move toward a more specialist and less generalist curriculum, more oriented to the social sciences than at present.

(6) PENOLOGY AND CRIME PREVENTION

"Combating Crime," Annals, Vol. 374 (November, 1967).

BIDERMAN, ALBERT D., and REISS, ALBERT J., JR. "On Exploring the 'Dark Figure' of Crime."

- BIDERMAN, ALBERT D. "Surveys of Population Samples for Estimating Crime Incidence."
- McIntyre, Jennie. "Public Attitudes Toward Crime and Law Enforcement."
- REISS, ALBERT J., JR., and BLACK, DONALD J. "Interrogation and the Criminal Process."
- TERRIS, BRUCE J. "The Role of the Police."
- ROSETT, ARTHUR. "The Negotiated Guilty Plea."
- Nelson, Elmer K., Jr. "Community-Based Correctional Treatment: Rationale and Problems."
- Blumstein, Alfred. "Systems Analysis and the Criminal Justice System."
- CRESSEY, DONALD R. "Methodological Problems in the Study of Organized Crime as a Social Problem."
- RUTH, HENRY S., JR. "Why Organized Crime Thrives."
- GARDINER, JOHN A. "Public Attitudes Toward Gambling and Corruption."
- BLUM, RICHARD H. "Drugs, Behavior, and Crime."
- Stern, Gerald. "Public Drunkenness: Crime or Health Problem?"
- KADISH, SANFORD H. "The Crisis of Overcriminalization."
- SARD, THOMAS R. "Contact With the Free Community Is Basic if Institutional Programs Are to Succeed," Fed Proba, Vol. 31, No. 1 (March, 1967).

Examines impact of interchange between prisoners and community and various programs for "correctionalization including work release."

Stratton, John R. "Differential Identification and Attitudes Toward the Law," Soc For, Vol. 46, No. 2 (December, 1967).

Involves 351 correctional institution inmates. Three measures of criminal reference group orientation are related to index of attitudes favoring law violation.

(7) POLICE ADMINISTRATION AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE

BEAVER, JAMES E. "The Newsman's Code, the Claim of Privilege and Everyman's Right to Evidence," *Ore L R*, Vol. 47, No. 3 (April, 1968).

Presents background of journalistic privilege not to reveal sources of confidential information and to discuss the policy arguments for and against the creation by statute of a journalistic privilege.

BITTNER, EGON. "The Police on Skid-Row: A Study of Peace-Keeping," *Amer Soc R*, Vol. 32, No. 5 (October, 1967).

Discusses three elements of keeping peace on skid-row. Patrolmen seek to acquire a rich body of concrete knowledge about people by cultivating personal acquaintances, tend to proceed against persons mainly on basis of perceived risk and are more interested in reducing the aggregate total of troubles in the area than in evaluating individual cases according to merit.

BOTTOMLEY, A. K. "The Granting of Bail: Principles and Practices," *Mod L R*, Vol. 31, No. 1 (January, 1968).

Outlines bail practices in England and Wales.

GOLDSTEIN, HERMAN. "Trial Judges and the Police: Their Relationships in the Administration of Criminal Justice," Crime and Delinq, Vol. 14, No. 1 (January, 1968).

Evaluates relationship between trial judges and police and recommends that police departments be recognized as agencies having major responsibility in the administration of criminal justice and that police administrators and trial judges enter into a dialogue based upon mutual respect.

"Interrogations in New Haven: The Impact of Miranda," Yale L J, Vol. 76, No. 8 (July, 1967).

Report on extensive study of interrogation of witnesses in New Haven.

KIMBALL, EDWARD L., and NEWMAN, DONALD J. "Judicial Intervention in Correctional Decisions: Threat and Response," *Crime and Delinq*, Vol. 14, No. 1 (January, 1968).

Analyzes conflict between judges and correctional personnel over judicial interference in correctional decisions. Discusses changes in certain practices and procedures to persuade courts of competency and fairness of correctional discretion.

LINDQUIST, CHARLES A. "An Analysis of Juror Selection Procedure in the United States District Courts," *Temple L Q*, Vol. 41, No. 1 (Fall, 1967).

With emphasis on Pennsylvania, discusses various methods of jury selection in the district courts and suggests some reforms.

MEDALIE, RICHARD J. "The Offender Rehabilitation Project: A New Role for Defense Counsel at Pretrial and Sentencing," Georgetn L J, Vol. 56, No. 1 (November, 1967).

Discusses a rehabilitation project operated by Defense Counsel Legal Aid Agency in the criminal courts with emphasis on pretrial and presentence activity.

PARNAS, RAYMOND I. "The Police Response to the Domestic Disturbance," Wis L R, No. 4 (Fall, 1967).

Describes police behavior with respect to domestic disturbances with view toward a better understanding and definition of the problem and to provide a foundation for formulating appropriate measures within the whole system for the administration of criminal justice.

RAFALKO, WALTER A. "Sociological Evidence as a Criminal Defence," Crim L Q, Vol. 10, No. 1 (November, 1967).

Uses case study to illustrate current use of sociological evidence in a criminal trial.

Schultz, LeRoy G. "Victim-Offender Relationship," Crime and Delinq, Vol. 14, No. 2 (April, 1968).

Stresses importance of presentence investigation report as means of determining the role of the victim in an offense and the use of this as a guide to probation.

(8) LEGAL SERVICES FOR DISADVANTAGED CLIENTS

MASOTTI, LOUIS, and CORSI, JEROME R. "Legal Assistance for the Poor: An Analysis and Evaluation of Two Programs," *J of Urban L*, Vol. 44 (Spring, 1967).

Reviews problem of legal assistance for the poor, describes two operating programs and evaluates relative advantages and disadvantages of each.

O'BRIEN, FRANCIS WILLIAM. "Why Not Appointed Counsel in Civil Cases? The Swiss Approach," Ohio St L J, Vol. 28, No. 1 (Winter, 1967).

Based on Swiss experience argues for appointed counsel in civil cases in the United States.

"The Ombudsman or Citizen's Defender: A Modern Institution," Annals, Vol. 377 (May, 1968).

Wennergren, Bertil. "The Rise and Growth of Swedish Institutions for Defending the Citizen Against Official Wrongs."

Bexelius, Alfred. "The Origin, Nature, and Functions of the Civil and Military Ombudsmen in Sweden."

CHENG, HING YONG. "The Emergence and Spread of the Ombudsman Institution."

HIDEN, MIKAEL J. V. "Finland's Defenders of the Law."

THUNE, SVERRE. "The Norwegian Ombudsmen for Civil and Military Affairs."

ABRAHAM, HENRY J. "The Danish Ombudsman."

SAWER, GEOFFREY. "The Ombudsman and Related Institutions in Australia and New Zealand."

BADER, HELMUT, and BROMPTON, HENRY. "Remedies Against Administrative Abuse in Central Europe, the Soviet Union, and Communist East Europe (Ombudsmen and Others)."

Marshall, Geoffrey. "The British Parliamentary Commissioner for Administration."

Adams, John Clarke. "In Quest of the Ombudsman in the Mediterranean Area."

SANDLER, AKE. "An Ombudsman for the United States."

UNRUH, JESSE M. "The Ombudsman in the States."

ZEIDLER, FRANK P. "An Ombudsman for Cities?"

Nelson, Dalmas H., and Price, Eugene C. "Realignment, Readjustment, Reform: The Impact of the Ombudsman on American Constitutional and Political Institutions."

Pelletier, George A. "English Legal Aid: The Successful Experiment in Judicare," *Univ of Colo L R*, Vol. 40, No. 1 (Fall, 1967).

Discusses various aspects of English Legal Aid—includes some statistics on use of services and costs.

SILVERSTEIN, LEE. "Eligibility for Free Legal Services in Civil Cases," *J of Urban L*, Vol. 44 (Summer, 1967).

Report based on 275 legal aid organizations made in 1966 and 1967 by American Bar Foundation in cooperation with the National Legal Aid and Defender Association.

(9) JUVENILES AND THE LAW

ALEXANDER, C. NORMAN, JR. "Alcohol and Adolescent Rebellion," Soc For, Vol. 45, No. 4 (June, 1967).

Examines hypothesis that drinking in social situations governed by abstinence norms is often an expression of aggression against normative authority.

Carver, Lyell Henry, and White, Paul Anthony. "Constitutional Safeguards for the Juvenile Offender," *Crime and Delinq*, Vol. 14, No. 1 (January, 1968).

Examines ramifications and implications of Kent and Gault decisions on the rights of juveniles in court.

Defleur, Lois B. "Ecological Variables in the Cross-Cultural Study of Delinquency," Soc For, Vol. 45, No. 4 (June, 1967).

Presents ecological data on juvenile offenders and offenses from Cordoba, Argentina. Discussed against background of United States studies and implications drawn concerning delinquency theory.

GORDON, ROBERT A. "Issues in the Ecological Study of Delinquency," *Amer Soc R*, Vol. 32, No. 6 (December, 1967).

Argues that association between delinquency and socioeconomic status is unambiguously strong, contrary to many studies which relate delinquency to anomic rather than socioeconomic factors.

LIPSITT, PAUL D. "The Juvenile Offenders Perceptions," Crime and Deling, Vol. 14, No. 1 (January, 1968).

Studies 265 boys in three metropolitan juvenile courts before and after court appearance. Compared ratings of potency and evaluation of self and judge and related these to background factors.

McEachern, A. W., Taylor, Edward M., Newman, J. Robert, and Ashford, Ann E. "The Juvenile Probation System: Simulation for Research and Decision-Making," *Amer Behav Sci*, Vol. 11, No. 3 (January-February, 1968).

Describes research project in juvenile probation.

SHERIDAN, WILLIAM H. "Juveniles Who Commit Noncriminal Acts: Why Treat in a Correctional System? New Directions for the Juvenile Court Structuring Services for Delinquent Children and Youth," Fed Proba, Vol. 31, No. 1 (March, 1967), No. 2 (June, 1967), No. 3 (September, 1967)

Series of articles on problems concerning juveniles in court.

SHERMAN, EDNA S. "The Role of a Juvenile Court Citizens' Advisory Committee," Crime and Deling, Vol. 14, No. 2 (April, 1968).

Discusses importance of citizens' advisory committee in providing support to juvenile court judge in selling court and its program to the public. Examines program of such a committee in Summit County (Akron), Ohio.

SHERMAN, PETER R. "'... Nor Cruel and Unusual Punishments Inflicted'—The Eighth Amendment and the Juvenile Court," *Crime and Delinq*, Vol. 14, No. 1 (January, 1968).

Assesses the eighth amendment to the Constitution in relation to juveniles and suggests that treatment of a juvenile within the jurisdiction of the court may involve punishment even though the purpose of the proceeding is not penal.

SINGELL, LARRY D. "An Examination of the Empirical Relationship Between Unemployment and Juvenile Delinquency," Amer J of Econ and Soc, Vol. 26, No. 4 (October, 1967).

Attempts to provide empirical support for contention that unemployment is a significant factor in juvenile delinquency by examining relationship between delinquency and unemployment in Detroit.

Symposium on Youth and the Law. *Hastings L J*, Vol. 19, No. 1 (November, 1967).

Gough, Amen R. "Referees in California's Juvenile Courts: A Study in Sub-Judicial Adjudication."

Welch, Thomas A. "Kent v. United States and In Re Gault: Two Decisions in Search of a Theory."

Boches, Ralph E. "Juvenile Justice in California: A Reevaluation."

FURLONG, ROBERT E. "Youthful Marriages and Parenthood: A Threat to Family Stability."

Newman, Ralph A. "The Hidden Equity."

DIAMOND, BERNARD L. "The Scientific Method and the Law."

(10) LAW AND THE MEDICAL SCIENCES

Alexander, George J., and Szasz, Thomas S. "Mental Illness as an Excuse for Civil Wrongs," *Notre Dame Lwyr*, Vol. 43, No. 1 (October, 1967).

Relates mental illness and the subject of nonresponsibility for civil wrongs.

Symposium on Law and Psychiatry: The Tyranny and Utility of Labels. *Temple L Q*, Vol. 40, No. 3, 4 (Spring-Summer, 1967).

SZASZ, THOMAS S. "The Insanity Plea and the Insanity Verdict."

Heller, Melvin S. "Toward a Common Language for Behavioral Science and the Law: The Legal Utility of Psychiatric Labels and the Psychoanalytic Frame of Reference."

SADOFF, ROBERT L. "Sexually Deviated Offenders."

McKenna, James J., Jr. "A Rationale for Typologies of Criminal Behavior."

Symposium on Reflections on the New Biology. UCLA L R, Vol. 15, No. 2 (February, 1968).

Pauling, Linus. "Foreword."

GURNEY, RODERIC. "The New Biology and the Future of Man."

Sanders, David, Dukeminier, Jr. "Medical Advance and Legal Lag: Hemodialysis and Kidney Transplantation."

HENDERSON, CURTIS, and ETTINGER, ROBERT C. W. "Cyronic Suspension and the Law."

Schuyler, Daniel M. "The New Biology and the Rule Against Perpetuities."

- Burger, Warren E. "Reflections on Law and Experimental Medicine."
- GOLDING, MARTIN P. "Ethical Issues in Biological Engineering."
- Grad, Frank P. "Legislative Responses to the New Biology: Limits and Possibilities."
- BATH, JOHN. "They Shoot Horses, Don't They?" An essay on the scotoma of one-eyed kings.
- WILLIS, STANLEY E., II. "Psychiatric Testimony, Trial Gamesmanship and the Defense of Insanity," San Diego L R, Vol. 5, No. 1 (January, 1968).

A psychiatrist emphasizes problems in presenting psychiatric evidence. Suggests that insanity defense may be prejudicial to the criminal defendant.

(11) CIVIL LIBERTIES, CIVIL RIGHTS, RACE RELATIONS

BLOOMBAUM, MILTON. "The Conditions Underlying Race Riots as Portrayed by Multidimensional Scalogram Analysis: A Reanalysis of Lieberson and Silverman's Data," *Amer Soc R*, Vol. 33, No. 1 (February, 1968).

Multidimensional scalogram analysis applied to data on nine demographic conditions characterizing 24 cities in which Negro-white race riots occurred and 24 matched cities in which riots did not occur.

HENDON, WILLIAM S. "Discrimination Against Negro Homeowners in Property Tax Assessment," Amer J of Econ and Soc, Vol. 27, No. 2 (April, 1968).

Investigates Negro realty assessments and compares them with assessments of comparable white-owned housing in order to determine if taxing officials "discriminate" against the Negro or subsidize him. Concludes Negro pays more taxes per dollar than does white counterpart.

Muller, Andre L. "Economic Growth and Minorities," Amer J of Econ and Soc, Vol. 26, No. 3 (July, 1967).

Examines the validity of Herman D. Block's opinion that "the idea that the Negro has enjoyed an advance in economic status is a fallacy," and finds it somewhat inaccurate.

Symposium on Race, Collective Behavior and Politics. Soc Prob, Vol. 15, No. 3 (Winter, 1968).

HOROWITZ, IRVING LOUIS, and LIEBOWITZ, MARTIN. "Social Deviance and Political Marginality."

Olsen, Marvin E. "Legitimacy of Social Protest."

COUCH, CARL J. "Collective Behavior: An Examination of Some Stereotypes."

OBERSCHALL, ANTHONY. "The Los Angeles Riot."

GRINDSTAFF, CARL F. "The Negro Urbanization and Relative Deprivation in the Deep South."

Tumin, Melvin H. "Some Social Consequences of Research on Racial Relations," Amer Sociologist, Vol. 3, No. 2 (May, 1968.)

Discusses lag between time research findings are published and time public and private policy has moved toward implementation of these findings with emphases on the field of race relations.

(12) SOCIAL WELFARE AND RELATED PROBLEMS

Bernard, Sydney E., Jurtagh, Emeric, and Johnson, Harold R. "The Neighborhood Service Organization: Specialist in Social Welfare Innovation," Soc Work, Vol. 13, No. 1 (January, 1968).

Describes agency whose primary purpose is the creation, testing and demonstration of practice, organizational and interorganizational social work innovations.

DANIEL, COLDWELL, III. "Freedom, Equity and the War on Poverty," Amer J of Econ and Soc, Vol. 26, No. 4 (October, 1967).

Attempts to make explicit the conflict between freedom and distributive justice by constructing a simple model of a political system that conforms unquestionably with individual liberty.

EDGLEY, CHARLES K., STEGLICH, W. G., and CARTWRIGHT, WALTER J. "Rent Subsidy and Housing Satisfaction," Amer J of Econ and Soc, Vol. 27, No. 2 (April, 1968).

Data from urban renewal project in Lubbock, Texas, suggest that when families who were self-sufficient in slum housing are forced into

welfare situations because of rent subsidy programs, dissatisfaction with relocation facilities results.

GERGEN, DAVID R. "Renewal in the Ghetto: A Study of Residential Rehabilitation in Boston's Washington Park," *Har Civil Rights—Civil Lib L R*, Vol. 3, No. 2 (Spring, 1968).

Explores the major social and technical issues in residential rehabilitation through examination of Washington Park project in Roxbury section of Boston.

Kaplan, Sidney J., and Delbecq, Andre. "Perceived Hindrance to Social Change in a Poverty Program," Social and Soc Res, Vol. 52, No. 2 (January, 1968).

Concerns hindrances perceived by personnel of four Neighborhood Opportunity Centers waging "war against poverty" and implication of these hindrances for social change theory.

Quirk, William J., Wein, Leon E., and Gomberg, Ira. "A Draft Program of Housing Reform—The Tenant Condominium," Cornell L R, Vol. 53, No. 3 (February, 1968).

Discusses current problems of housing in cities and proposes new housing program based on condominiums.

ROSEN, ALBERT. "Receivership: A Useful Tool for Helping to Meet the Housing Needs of Low Income People," *Har Civil Rights—Civil Lib L R*, Vol. 3, No. 2 (Spring, 1968).

Discusses ways to improve urban renewal programs and outlines the general elements of receivership.

RYAN, MICHAEL. "Health Centre Policy in England and Wales," Br J of Soc, Vol. 19, No. 1 (March, 1968).

Discusses factors at national and local level and limitation of capital expenditure by the central government which resulted in failure of expectations concerning health centres in England and Wales.

Symposium on Drugs and the Law. Cal L R, Vol. 56, No. 1 (January, 1968).

FORT, JOEL. "Social Problems of Drug Use."

OTERI, JOSEPH S., and NORRIS, LAWRENCE H. "The Use of Evidence in a Constitutional Attack on a State Criminal Statute."

GUSFIELD, JOSEPH R. "On Legislating Morals."

WATTS, ALAN. "Psychedelics and Religious Experience."

CLARK, WALTER HOUSTON. "Religious Aspects of Psychedelic Drugs."

RHEINGOLD, PAUL D. "The MER/29 Story—Mass Disaster Legislation."

KEETON, PAGE. "Strict Liability for Prescription Drugs."

ISRAELSTAM, DAVID M. "Selected Bibliography on Drugs."

Symposium on Housing. *L and Contemp Prob*, Vol. 32, No. 2 (Spring, 1967). Part I: Perspectives and Problems. A series of articles on several aspects of housing in the United States.

EVERETT, ROBINSON O., and JOHNSTON, JOHN D., JR. "Foreword."

SPENGLER, JOSEPH J. "Population Pressure, Housing and Habitat."

KEITH, NATHANIEL S. "An Assessment of National Housing Needs."

BABCOCK, RICHARD F., and BOSSELMAN, FRED P. "Citizen Participation: A Suburban Suggestion for the Central City."

KAISER, EDWARD J., and WEISS, SHIRLEY F. "Local Public Policy and the Residential Development Process."

HOLPER, JOHN B. "The Influence of Mortgage Lenders in Building Design."

KLAMAN, SAUL B. "Public/Private Approaches to Urban Mortgage and Housing Problems."

Cogswell, Arthur R. "Housing, The Computer and the Architectural Process."

BAIR, FREDERICK H., JR. "Mobile Homes-A New Challenge."

ROHAN, PATRICK J. "Perfecting the Condominium as a Housing Tool: Innovations in Tax Liability and Insurance."

- Petro, Sylvester. "Unions, Housing Costs and the National Labor Policy."
- STERNLIEB, GEORGE. "Slum Housing: A Functional Analysis."
- FRIEDMAN, LAWRENCE M. "Government and Slum Housing: Some General Considerations."
- Symposium on Narcotic and Hallucinogenic Drugs. *Hastings L J*, Vol. 19, No. 3 (March, 1968).
 - Belton, Peter J. "Civic Commitment of Narcotics Addicts in California: A Case History of Statutory Construction."
 - FINER, JOEL JAY. "Psychedelics and Religious Freedom."
 - Brill, Henry. "Medical and Delinquent Addicts or Drug Abusers: A Medical Distinction of Legal Significance."
 - KLINE, NATHAN S. "The Alteration of 'Natural' Biological States by LSD."
- Symposium on Workmen's Compensation. Cleve Marsh L R, Vol. 17, No. 1 (January, 1968).

Series of articles on several aspects of application of workmen's compensation.

Vadakin, James C. "A Critique of the Guaranteed Annual Income," *Pub Int*, No. 11 (Spring, 1968).

Discusses various theories on guaranteed annual income and its implications for society.

Zald, Mayer N. "Urban Differentiation, Characteristics of Boards of Directors, and Organizational Effectiveness." *Amer J of Soc*, Vol. 73, No. 3 (November, 1967).

Aggregate measures of the socioeconomic composition of boards of directors of 34 branches of the YMCA of Chicago found to be correlated with demographic measures on the areas each serves. Study links ecological and organizational analysis.

(13) SOCIAL CONFLICT AND SOCIAL CONTROL

Davis, James W., Jr., and Dolbeare, Kenneth M. "Selective Service: Present Impact and Future Prospects," Wis L R, No. 4 (Fall, 1967).

Analyzes the practical effect of the draft law with attention to deferment policies. Suggests probable consequences of those modifications enacted into the 1967 legislative revision of the "draft law."

Gur, Ted. "Psychological Factors in Civil Violence," Wld Pol, Vol. 20, No. 2 (January, 1968).

Proposes that civil violence is a significant topic of political inquiry and that it is capable of explanation, and we know enough about sources of human violence to specify in general terms some of the social patterns that dispose men to violence.

ZENBIERG, NORMAN E., and FELLMAN, GORDON A. "Violence: Biological Need and Social Control," Soc For, Vol. 45, No. 4 (June, 1967).

Discusses the possibility implicit in psychoanalytic theory that on an instinctual basis, destructive impulses may be irreducible in man's nature.

(14) JURISPRUDENCE, LEGAL PROCESS, SOCIOLOGICAL THEORY, INTERNATIONAL LAW

Carlston, Kenneth. "A Framework for the Legal Analysis of War-Peace Issues," *Amer J of Int L*, Vol. 60, 1966.

Analysis of the problem of war from the standpoint of social theory and recommendation of a method for the resolution of conflicts likely to lead to war.

Carlston, Kenneth. "Psychological and Sociological Aspects of the Judicial and Arbitration Processes," in *International Arbitration:* Liber Amicorum for Martin Domke, P. Sanders (ed.), The Hague: Nijhoff, 1967, p. 44.

Brief statement of the applicability of concepts of social theory to judicial and arbitration processes.

CARLSTON, KENNETH. "World Order and International Law," J of Leg Ed, Vol. 20 (1968).

Behavioral analysis of the problem of creating an authoritative world order of peace.

(15) PRIMITIVE AND FOLK LAW

Epstein, A. L. "The Case Method in the Field of Law," in *The Craft of Social Anthropology*, A. L. Epstein (ed.), London: Tavistock Publications, 1967.

Evaluates several competing definitions of "law" used by social anthropologists and suggests the virtues of a case method approach to primitive law studies.

Pospisil, Leo. "Law and Order," in *Introduction to Cultural Anthro*pology, James A. Clifton (ed.), New York: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1968.

Discusses the three traditions in legal-anthropological thinking concerned with the definition of law: the identification of law with custom or norms; definition of law by rigorous criteria; and definition by cultural relativity.

(16) LAW AND ECONOMIC REGULATION

WHITFORD, WILLIAM C. "Strict Products Liability and the Automobile Industry: Much Ado About Nothing," Wis L R, No. 1 (1968).

Study of the resolution of products liability disputes in the automobile industry.

(17) MISCELLANEOUS

Belli, Melvin. "The Revolution in the Civic Law," Alber L R, Vol. 6, No. 1 (1968).

Analyzes causes of the change in attitude by American courts toward civil disputes. Concludes that essential ingredient was recognition of individual's rights.

Jencks, Clinton E. "Social Status of Coal Miners in Britain Since Nationalization," Amer J of Econ and Soc, Vol. 26, No. 3 (July, 1967).

Through interviews with coal miners, examines their outlook on their position in society.

MAYHEW, LEON. "The Sociology of Law," in *American Sociology:* Perspectives, Problems, Methods, Talcott Parsons (ed.), New York: Basic Books, 1968, pp. 171-83.

An essay which examines the various components of the sociology of law and evaluates some research efforts to date.

Sinclair, Alan M. "Condominium in Canada," Can Bar R, Vol. 46, No. 1 (March, 1968).

Discusses the role of law and lawyers in the development of condominia through using the current law where available and developing legislative innovations.

Symposium on Sex and the Contemporary American Scene. Annals, Vol. 376 (March, 1968).

SAGARIN, EDWARD. "Taking Stock of Studies of Sex."

SMIGEL, ERWIN O., and SEIDER, RITA. "The Decline and Fall of the Double Standard."

WINICK, CHARLES. "The Beige Epoch: Depolarization of Sex Roles in America."

UDRY, J. RICHARD. "Sex and Family Life."

Boyers, Robert. "Attitudes Toward Sex in American 'High Cul-

CALDERONE, MARY S. "Sex Education and the Roles of School and Church."

ROSENBERG, BERNARD, and BENSMAN, JOSEPH. "Sexual Patterns in Three Ethnic Subcultures of an American Underclass."

FERDINAND, THEODORE N. "Sex Behavior and the American Class Structure: A Mosaic."

Rubin, Isadore. "The 'Sexless Older Years'—A Socially Harmful Stereotype."

ELLIS, ALBERT. "Sexual Manifestations of Emotionally Disturbed Behavior."

GAGNON, JOHN H., and SIMON, WILLIAM. "Sexual Deviance in Contemporary America."

ESSELSTYN, T. C. "Prostitution in the United States."

SCHUR, EDWIN M. "Abortion."

MACNAMARA, DANAL E., JR. "Sex Offenses and Sex Offenders."

Symposium on Stirrings Out of Apathy: Student Activism and the Decade of Protest. Soc For, Vol. 23, No. 3 (July, 1967).

Introduction

- SAMPSON, EDWARD E. "Student Activism and the Decade of Protest."
- TRENT, JAMES W., and CRAISE, JUDITH L. "Commitment and Conformity in the American College."
- FLACKS, RICHARD. "The Liberated Generation: An Explanation of the Roots of Student Protest."
- BAY, CHRISTIAN. "Political and Apolitical Students: Facts in Search of Theory."
- Brown, Donald R. "Student Stress and the Institutional Environment."
- Keniston, Kenneth. "The Sources of Student Dissent."
- Symposium on Students and Politics. *Daedalus*, Vol. 97, No. 1 (Winter, 1968).
 - LIPSET, SEYMOUR MARTIN. "Students and Politics in Comparative Perspective."
 - Moore, Clement H., and Hochschild, Arlie R. "Student Unions in North African Politics."
 - FINLAY, DAVID J. "Students and Politics in Ghana."
 - Scott, Robert E. "Student Political Activism in Latin America."
 - GLAZER, MYRON. "Student Politics in a Chilean University."
 - HALSEY, G. H., and MARKS, STEPHEN. "British Student Politics."
 - PINNER, FRANK A. "Tradition and Transgression: Western European Students in the Postwar World."
 - ALLARDT, ERIK, and TOMASSON, RICHARD F. "Stability and Strains in Scandinavian Student Politics."
 - CORNELL, RICHARD. "Students and Politics in the Communist Countries of Eastern Europe."
 - Roos, Leslie L., Jr., Roos, Novalon P., and Field, Gary R. "Students and Politics in Turkey."

- Shimbovi, Michiya. "The Sociology of a Student Movement— A Japanese Case Study."
- ISRAEL, JOHN. "Reflections on the Modern Chinese Student Movement."
- ALTBACH, PHILIP G. "Student Politics and Higher Education in India."
- SILVERSTEIN, JOSEF. "Burmese Student Politics in a Changing Society."
- Peterson, Richard E. "The Student Left in American Higher Education."
- Symposium on Women Around the World. Annals, Vol. 375 (January, 1968).
- Presents an analysis of current social, political, legal, economic, and educational status of women in various cultures in series of articles.
 - HOTTEL, ALTHEA K. "Women Around the World: An Introductory Comment."
 - Bernard, Jessie. "The Status of Women in Modern Patterns of Culture."
 - RIDLEY, JEANNE CLAIRE. "Demographic Change and the Roles and Status of Women."
 - HENDERSON, JULIA J. "Impact of the World Social Situation on Women."
 - Menon, Lakshmi N. "From Constitutional Recognition to Public Office."
 - PEDERSEN, INGER MARGRETE. "Status of Women in Private Law."
 - BOYD, ROSAMONDE RAMSEY. "Women and Politics in the United States and Canada."
 - FESTINI, NELLY. "Women in Public Life in Peru."
 - DEVAUD, MARCELLE STANILAP. "Political Participation of Western European Women."
 - CHYLINSKA, KAMILA. "Political Activity of Women in Eastern Europe."

- UNGOR, BERAET ZEKI. "Women in the Middle East and North Africa: Universal Suffrage."
- Brooks, Angle E. "Political Participation of Women in Africa South of the Sahara."
- RAKSASATAYA, AMARA. "The Political Role of Southeast Asian Women."
- FUJITA, TAKI. "Women and Politics in Japan."
- NORRIS, ADA. "Women's Political Participation in the South Pacific."
- JOHNSTONE, ELIZABETH. "Women in Economic Life: Rights and Opportunities."
- LANIER, ALISON RAYMOND. "Women in the Rural Areas."
- Cook, ALICE H. "Women and American Trade Unions."
- FRIDERICK, NICOLE M. "Access to Education at All Levels."
- CHATON, JEANNE HENRIETTE. "The UNESCO Long-Range Program for the Advancement of Women."
- Beasley, Ina M. "Education Is the Key for Women."
- Bruce, Margaret K. "An Account of United Nations Action to Advance the Status of Women."
- Salton, James H. "Recent Developments in United States History, 1963-1966."
- VINES, KENNETH N., and GLICK, HENRY ROBERT. "The Impact of Universal Suffrage: A Comparison of Popular and Property Voting," *Amer Pol Sci R*, Vol. 61, No. 4 (December, 1967).

Investigation into the "costs" of universal suffrage on the quality of government and on specific policy decisions.

II. Books

- ABERNATHY, M. GLENN. Civil Liberties and the Constitution. New York: Dodd, Mead, 1968.
- ABRAHAM, HENRY J. The Judicial Process: An Introductory Analysis of the Courts of the United States, England, and France (2nd edition). New York: Oxford University Press, 1968.

- Anderson, Stanley V. (ed.). Ombudsmen for American Government? Englewood Cliffs, N.J.: Prentice-Hall, 1968.
- Ashford, Douglas E. National Development and Local Reform: Political Participation in Morocco, Tunisia, and Pakistan. Princeton: Princeton University Press, 1967.
- Baldwin, Sidney. Poverty and Politics: The Rise and Decline of the Farm Security Administration. Chapel Hill: University of North Carolina Press, 1968.
- BARKUN, MICHAEL. Law Without Sanctions: Order in Primitive Societies and the World Community. New Haven: Yale University Press, 1968.
- BAUER, RAYMOND A., and GERGEN, KENNETH J. (eds.). The Study of Policy Formation. New York: The Free Press, 1968.
- BAYLEY, DAVID H. Public Liberties in the New States. Chicago: Rand McNally, 1967.
- Berger, Morroe. Equality by Statute: The Revolution in Civil Rights (revised edition). Garden City, N.Y.: Doubleday, 1967.
- BLOOMBERG, WARNER JR., and SCHMANDT, HENRY J. (eds.). Power, Poverty and Urban Policy. Beverly Hills: Sage Publications, 1968.
- Blumberg, Abraham S. Criminal Justice. Chicago: Quadrangle Books, 1967.
- Callahan, Parnell J. T. The Law of Separation and Divorce. Dobbs Ferry, N.Y.: Oceana Publications, 1967.
- CAMPBELL, ALAN K., and SACKS, SEYMOUR. Metropolitan America: Fiscal Patterns and Governmental Systems. New York: The Free Press, 1967.
- Carlin, Jerome E., Howard, Jan, and Messinger, Sheldon L. Civil Justice and the Poor: Issues for Sociological Research. New York: Russell Sage Foundation, 1967.
- CARMICHAEL, STOKELY, and HAMILTON, CHARLES. Black Power: The Politics of Liberation in America. New York: Vintage, 1967.
- CICOUREL, AARON V. The Social Organization of Juvenile Justice. New York: John Wiley, 1968.

- Committee on the Professional School and World Affairs. Report of the Task Force on Law. New York: Education and World Affairs, 1967.
- CONOT, ROBERT. Rivers of Blood, Years of Darkness. New York: Bantam Books, 1967.
- CRAIN, ROBERT L. The Politics of School Desegregation: Comparative Case Studies of Community Structure and Policy Making. Chicago: Aldine, 1968.
- DAHL, ROBERT A. Pluralist Democracy in the United States: Conflict and Consent. Chicago: Rand McNally, 1967.
- Dalton, George (ed.). Primitive, Archaic and Modern Economies: Essays of Karl Polanyi. New York: Anchor Books, 1968.
- EIDELBERG, PAUL. The Philosophy of the American Constitution: A Reinterpretation of the Intentions of the Founding Fathers. New York: The Free Press, 1968.
- ETZIONI, AMITAI. The Active Society: A Theory of Societal and Political Processes. New York: The Free Press, 1968.
- FERMAN, LOUIS A., KORNBLUB, JOYCE L., and MILLER, J. A. (eds.). Negroes and Jobs: A Book of Readings. Ann Arbor: University of Michigan Press, 1968.
- Fishel, Leslie H., Jr., and Quarles, Benjamin (eds.). The Negro-American: A Documentary History. Chicago: Scott, Foresman, 1967.
- Freund, Julian. The Sociology of Max Weber. New York: Pantheon, 1968.
- FREUND, PAUL A. On Law and Justice. Cambridge: Harvard University Press, 1968.
- FRIED, MORTON. The Evolution of Political Society: An Essay in Political Anthropology. New York: Random House, 1967.
- FRIEDMAN, LAWRENCE M. Government and Slum Housing: A Century of Frustration. Chicago: Rand McNally, 1968.
- FRIEDRICH, CARL J. Constitutional Government and Democracy (4th edition). Waltham, Mass.: Blaisdell Publishing Company, 1968.

- LAW AND SOCIETY REVIEW
- Goldschmidt, Walter. Sebei Law. Berkeley: University of California Press, 1967.
- GOLDSTEIN, ABRAHAM S. The Insanity Defense. New Haven: Yale University Press, 1967.
- GOTTLIEB, GIDON. The Logic of Choice: An Investigation of the Concepts of Rule and Rationality. New York: Macmillan, 1968.
- GROSS, BERTRAM M. (ed.). A Great Society? New York: Basic Books, 1968.
- HART, H. L. A. Punishment and Responsibility: Essays in the Philosophy of Law. New York: Oxford University Press, 1968.
- HENTOFF, NAT, and McPhee, John. Our Children Are Dying/The Headmaster. New York: Four Winds Press, 1967.
- Hodgkinson, Ruth G. The Origins of the National Health Service: The Medical Services of the New Poor Law, 1834-1871. Berkeley: University of California Press, 1967.
- HOLCOMBE, ARTHUR N. The Constitutional System: Securing the Blessings of Liberty. Chicago: Scott, Foresman, 1967.
- Jahnige, Thomas P., and Goldman, Sheldon. The Federal Judicial System: Readings in Process and Behavior. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1968.
- Janowitz, Morris. Social Control of Escalated Riots. Chicago: University of Chicago Center for Policy Study, 1968.
- Jenks, C. Wilfred. Law in the World Community. New York: David McKay Company, 1967.
- Johnson, Richard M. The Dynamics of Compliance: Supreme Court Decision-Making From a New Perspective. Evanston: Northwestern University Press, 1968.
- Jones, Harry W. (ed.). Law and the Social Role of Science. New York: Rockefeller University Press, 1967.
- KAHN, HERMAN, and WIENER, ANTHONY J. The Year 2000: A Framework for Speculation on the Next Thirty-Three Years. New York: Macmillan, 1967.

- KARLEN, DELMAR. Anglo-American Criminal Justice. New York: Oxford University Press, 1967.
- KLEIN, PHILIP. From Philanthropy to Social Welfare. San Francisco: Jossey-Bass, 1968.
- Krislov, Samuel. The Negro in Federal Employment: The Quest for Equal Opportunity. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press, 1967.
- ——. The Supreme Court and Political Freedom. New York: The Free Press, 1968.
- LAZARSFELD, PAUL F., SEWELL, WILLIAM H., and WILENSKY, HAROLD L. (eds.). The Uses of Sociology. New York: Basic Books, 1967.
- Liebow, Elliot. Tally's Corner. Boston: Little, Brown, 1967.
- Lockard, Duane. Toward Equal Opportunity: A Study of State and Local Anti-Discrimination Laws. New York: Macmillan, 1968.
- Lubov, Roy. The Struggle for Social Security 1900-1935. Cambridge: Harvard University Press, 1968.
- Marris, Peter, and Rein, Martin. Dilemmas of Social Reform: Poverty and Community Action in the United States. New York: Atherton Press, 1967.
- MATHEWS, ROBERT E. Problems Illustrative of the Responsibilities of Members of the Legal Profession (revised edition). Chicago: American Bar Center, 1968.
- MAYHEW, LEON. Law and Equal Opportunity. Cambridge: Harvard University Press, 1968.
- MILLER, ARTHUR SELWYN. The Supreme Court and American Capitalism. New York: The Free Press, 1968.
- MITAU, G. THEODORE. Decade of Decision: The Supreme Court and the Constitutional Revolution, 1954-1964. New York: Charles Scribner's Sons, 1967.
- MUR, WILLIAM K., Jr. Prayer in the Public Schools: Law and Attitude Change. Chicago: University of Chicago Press, 1968.
- NIEDERHOFFER, ARTHUR. Behind the Shield: The Police in Urban Society. Garden City, N.Y.: Doubleday, 1967.

- Oaks, Dallin H., and Lehman, Warren. A Criminal Justice System and the Indigent: A Study of Chicago and Cook County. Chicago: University of Chicago Press, 1968.
- Pearlstein, Stanley. Psychiatry, the Law and Mental Health. Dobbs Ferry, N.Y.: Oceana Publications, 1967.
- POLIER, JUSTINE W. The Rule of Law and the Role of Psychiatry. Baltimore: Johns Hopkins Press, 1968.
- PRITCHETT, C. HERMAN. The American Constitution (2nd edition). New York: McGraw-Hill, 1968.
- ——. The American Constitutional System (2nd edition). New York: McGraw-Hill, 1968.
- RAE, DOUGLAS W. The Political Consequences of Electoral Laws. New Haven: Yale University Press, 1967.
- Report of the National Advisory Commission on Civil Disorders. New York: Bantam Books, 1968.
- RIEMER, NEAL. The Representative: Trustee? Delegate? Partisan? Politico? Boston: D. C. Heath, 1968.
- ROCHE, JOHN P. (ed.). John Marshall: Major Opinions and Other Writings. Indianapolis: Bobbs-Merrill, 1968.
- Rose, Arnold M. Libel and Academic Freedom: A Lawsuit Against Political Extremists. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press, 1968.
- Rosenberg, Charles E. The Trial of Assassin Guiteau: Psychiatry and Law in the Guilded Age. Chicago: University of Chicago Press, 1968.
- ROTH, GUENTHER, and WITTICH, CLAUS (eds.). Max Weber: Economy and Society—An Outline of Interpretative Sociology. Totowa, N.J.: Bedminster Press, 1968.
- Schubert, Glendon (ed.). Dispassionate Justice: A Synthesis of the Judicial Opinions of Robert H. Jackson. Indianapolis: Bobbs-Merrill, 1968.
- ——. Judicial Policy-Making: The Political Role of the Courts. Chicago: Scott, Foresman, 1967.

- Schur, Edwin M. Law and Society: A Sociological View. New York: Random House, 1968.
- Seligman, Ben B. Permanent Poverty: An American Syndrome. Chicago: Quadrangle, 1968.
- Shapiro, Martin. The Supreme Court and Administrative Agencies. New York: The Free Press, 1968.
- —— (ed.). The Supreme Court and Constitutional Rights. Glenview, Ill.: Scott, Foresman, 1967.
- Simon, Rita (ed.). The Sociology of Law: Interdisciplinary Readings. San Francisco: Chandler, 1968.
- Stedman, Murray S., Jr. (ed.). Modernizing American Government: The Demands of Social Change. Englewood Cliffs, N.J.: Prentice-Hall, Spectrum, 1968.
- STEINER, GILBERT Y. Social Insecurity: The Politics of Welfare. Chicago: Rand McNally, 1967.
- Summers, Marvin. Free Speech and Political Protest. Boston: D. C. Heath, 1967.
- TAYLOR, LEE. Occupational Sociology. New York: Oxford University Press, 1968.
- WAY, H. FRANK. Liberty in the Balance (2nd edition). New York: McGraw-Hill, 1968.
- Wedderburn, K. W. Cases and Materials on Labour Law. New York: Cambridge University Press, 1967.
- Weiner, Myron (ed.). Modernization. New York: Basic Books, 1966.
- Wiener, Frederick Bernays. Civilians Under Military Justice: The British Practice Since 1869, Especially in North America. Chicago: University of Chicago Press, 1968.
- WILLCOCKS, ARTHUR J. The Creation of the National Health Service: A Study of Pressure Groups and a Major Social Policy Decision. New York: Humanities Press, 1967.
- Winters, Glenn R. (ed.). Selected Readings, Judicial Selection and Tenure. Chicago: American Judicature Society, 1967.

III. JOURNALS SEARCHED

A. JOURNALS INCLUDED IN BIBLIOGRAPHY

(Supplement)*

Columbia Journal of Law and Social Problems (Col J of L and Soc Probs)

Crime and Delinquency (Crime and Delinq)

Federal Probation (Fed Proba)

Guild Practitioner (Guild Pract)

Harvard Civil Rights—Civil Liberties Law Review (Har Civil Rights—Civil Lib L R)

Harvard Journal on Legislation (Har J on Legis)

Journal of Church and State (J of Church and State)

Juvenile Court Judges' Journal (Juv Ct Judges J)

Labor Law Journal (Labor L J)

Land Economics (Land Econ)

Natural Resources Journal (Nat Res J)

Trial Judges Journal (Trial Judges J)

^{*} The first listing of journals searched for this feature appeared in Volume II, No. 2, pp. 334-39.